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Kabortonjo Level 4 Hospital (Baringo County Governmenl)
Annual Report ond Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

l. Key Kabartonjo level 4 Hospital Informafion and Management

(a) Background information

Kabartonjo Hospital is a gazetted level (4) hospital established and is domiciled under the Health
department in county government of Baringo. The hospital is govemed by a Board of Management.
Its Foundation was laid in 1964; it became a Dispensary in 1984 and was elevated to a Health centre
in 1995. On22"l July20ll itwasgazettedasaDistriitHospitalthenasalevel 4Hospital in2017
gazette. The hospital is situated in the highlands of Katimok Forest in Bebyemit village, Tiriondonin
sub location, Ossen location, Kabartonjo ward -Baringo North Sub County in Baringo County. The
facility currently has a bed capacity of32 and is accredited NHIF level 4 facility. The hospital sits on
I L5 acres which is demarcated.

(b) Principal Activities
- Maternity in patient services
- Refenals services
- VCT and Counselling
- Curative services
- Laboratory services
- TB clinics
- Diabetes and hypertension services
- Antenatal and postnatal services
- Comprehensive care clinics for patients living with HIV
- Baby well clinics
- Pharmacy
- X ray services
- Physiotherapy and orthopaedic trauma services
VISION
To be the most attractive and competitive referral hospital that affords progressively the highest
health standards for all the residents ofBaringo North Sub County, Baringo County and beyond.
MISSION
To transform the livelihoods of Baringo residents by offering quality affordable, accessible,
acceptable health services to all citizens in a fair equitability and responsive manner.
The core objectives
-To provide quality health care services
-To advocate and mobilize adequate funding for the hospital
-To train different health workers.

(c) Key Management
The hospital's management is under the following key organs
- County department of health
- County departrnent offinance
- Board of Management
- MedicalSuperintendent
- Health Management Team

ll
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uciary Management

management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30n June 2022 and
direct fi duciary responsibility were:

ucia ry Oversight Arrangements

ciary oversight ofthe county is done by;

e County Assembly
unty assembly pursuant to the constitution of Kenya, 2010 and the County Government act,

r article 8(l) has fiduciary oversight role over the execution of the functions ofthe County
ent; it approves the budget and expenditure of the county govemment in accordance with

207 ofthe constitution ofKenya

c Conroller of Budget
article 22(5) ofthe constitution ofKenya,20l0, the controller ofbudget has fiduciary role by
ng withdrawal of public funds from exchequer

unty Executive Committee
EC Member exercises executive authority in accordance with the constitution and county

ent act

ternal Audit Department
audits departrnent of the County Government of Baringo ensures that internal controls exists
adhered to.
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(f) Kabartonjo level 4 Hospital Headquarter
KABARTONJO HOSPITAL
P.O. Box 120-30401
KABARTONJO
KENYA

(g) Kabartonjo level 4 Hospital Contacts
Telephone: (+25 4) 7 224 497 99
E-mail : medsupkabartonjo@gmail.com

Website: -

(h) Kabartonjo level 4 Hospital Bankers
Kenya Commercial Bank
A./C no. 1149215593

(i) Independent Auditors
Auditor General
Office of Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, Institute Way
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00t00
Nairobi, Kenya

fi) Principal Legal Adviser
The Attorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 401l2
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

(k) County Attorney
P.O. Box.53-30400
Kabarnet, Kenya
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e Board of lllanagement

I

II 't'l

il

Mr.Charles
Kiberut

Chair Person

l
-Business man
-Diploma
Education

Mr. Anderson
Chelugo

2 ,,,r'
lll irl

Medical
Superintendent

-Clinical Officer
-BSC

'll Esther
Chemokwo

Member -Teacher
-Bed

Zachuy Kipsaina4

p
Menrber -Unionist

-Bed

Linda Bokong5 a-e Mernber -ICT
-Dip.ICT

Joel Chongwo ,***

aS*
HAO -Administrator

-Bed

Peter Kiptoo7 Member -Pharmacist
-BSC

Hellen Jurna8
-r
- ,t*

*

-Admini strator
-Bes
-Med

Irene Kemboi() I

I

Member -Pastor
.BA

7

6
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III Management Team

I Mr. Anderson Chelugo Med Sup

2 Mr. Joel Chongwo HAO

Emily Kipngok
Nursing Officer

TIC

4 Alex Cheptinya Laboratory UC

5 Sarn Tallarn Clinical IiC

6 Christopher Amdany Biorned I/C

7 Maryline Yator Accounts Clerk

tt
Vibian Kilanya

Ophthalmology

UC

9 lrene Kirnitei Social Worker l/C

l0 Noela Chelimo Public Health I/C

ll Dr. Banjarnin Chepkonga Pharmacy I/C

t2 Judy Kiptoon Nutrition I/C

l3 Nancy Chesire Orth trauma I/C
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airman's Statement

the financial year in question the current chairperson was not in office

rt of the Chief Executive Oflicer

ckground information
njo Sub County Referral Hospital foundation was laid in 1964, it becarne a Dispensary in
d was Elevated to a Health cenre in 1995 it was Gazetted as a District Hospital on 22n July

hen as a level 4 hospital in the year 20l7.The hospital is situated in the highlands of Katimok

, Bebyernit village, Tiriondonin sub location, Ossen location, Kabartonjo ward -Baringo North
ounty in Baringo county. The facility currently has a bed capacity of 32 and is accredited

level 4 facility though level 3A under medical practitioners and dentists rules. The hospital sits

Sacres which is demarcated. The facility is manned by the County Government of Baringo with
al management board of l0 members and health Management team comprising of l3 members.

57 technical staff spread across various carders in reach and 4 support staff funded by the

y Govemment and l3 casuals hired and paid by the hospital management.

nance
evenue
ospital revenue is derived from FIF. During the financial period the hospital realized,

ment on revenue collected compared to the last financial year 202012021 and this was
ed to Covid-I9 effects of 2020. The key drivers of our revenue are Laboratory, MCH,
ity, Pharmacy, Radiology and wards.

pelrditure
p drivers of the budget were medical drugs, casual staff remunerations, non -pharmaceuticals,
d ration, laboratory and maintenance ofbuilding and station
ding bills

pending bills at the end of the financial year were Ksh.l ,391 ,027.00

rategy
tegy is to make Kabartonjo Sub County Hospital a fully-fledged level IV hospital which

befitting wide range of quality and affordable services to its citizens

ievements
ospital management of board and team managed to do the following Key activities during the

nstruction, equipping and commissioning of the new maternity
lling, equipping and piping ofhospital borehole hence adequate water supply
mpletion of theatre wing

ation of new Ambulance
mpletion of Installation of EMR system
plementation of NHIF paperless e-Claim

A

eral hospital renovations
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Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospital (Baringo County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

e) Challenges
Kabartonjo Sub County Hospital based on the population that it serves had the following challenges;

- Delay of disbursement of funds from County Government for hospital running,

-Shortage of staff,

- Delayed reimbursement of NHIF claims,

- Huge expenditure on casual wages,

- Poor hospital boundary/security challenges and

- Inadequate supply of pharmaceuticals and non-pharmaceuticals.

0 Way Forward/Future Outlook of Hospital

In the next financial year, the hospital will endeavour to have;

-Cashless and paperless system via EMR system,

-Operationalization of hospital theatre,

-Offering comprehensive 24 hour services,

-Expansion and renovation of existing laboratory,

-Fencing of the hospital, Construction of medical/surgical/paediatric wards

-Establishment of dental unit.

g) Appreciation

I take this opportunity to thank and appreciate the County Govemment of Baringo, Central rift valley

water works agency, USAID, BOM, HMT and the entire hospital staff for their contributions in

achieving the results

Looking forward to a better 2022123 financial year

\
A

Sis,ed iNr |!:t-'
Mr. Anderson Chelugo
Medical superintendent
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of Pe rforma nce a gainst Predete rmined O bjectives

lt o county hospital has 7 pillars

ce product

fi nancing and sustainability

II vement

re urce development

development

hi and governance

oll

tal has annual work plan based on the above pillars
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t

Strategic
Pillar/Theme/lssues

Objective Key
Performance
lndicators

Activities Achievements

servlces

and

-To establish and
enhance good
clinical
governan@

-Hospital drug
formulary in
place
-No. of stock-
out tracer drug
-No
prescription
reviewed
Updated SOPs

-Rational use of
Medications
-Provision of health
products
-Monthly clinical
audrts and mortality
meetings
-Lockable stores

-Hospital drug
formulary in
place
Toreduction in
morbidity and
mortality.

-To ersure quality
dragnostic
services

-CIient
satisfaction
report
-EMR

-Complete
installation of EMR
system

-To enhance
effect ive
internal/extemal
referral systems

-Acquisition of
a new
ambulance

-Ambulance
donated

-timely
referrals

-To enhance
routllre
maintenance of
infrastructure

-Painting ofthe
hosprtal

-Renovation of
ward windows
-Renovatron of
maternity ward
-Renovation of opd
and clinics
-Servicing of
various medical
equipment's-
generator
-Servicing of
photocopier
machines

-X-ray roof
IOU/o
complete
-photocopier
serviced and
functioning
-Generator
serviced and
in good
condition

Heahh care financing
and sustainability

-To lncrease
revenue
generatron

-Revenue
reports
o/oincrase

revenue
ll1

-divenifo revenue
str@ms
-Increase customer
base

-Revenue
improved
compared to
previous years

-More patrents

have been

enrolled to
NHIF

-Facilitate prudent
financial
management

-Financial
reports
-Toincrease

resource
allocation
departments

lt)

to

-Provide cashless
payment
-Strengthen use of
financial and
procurement
policies and
guidelines.

M-payment at
the linkage
stage
-Frnancial and
procurement
policies and
guidelines in
place

x

Clinical
delivery
infrastructural
development
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ba

nt

'tor,

all

I )ual ly lmprovement -Enhance
continuous quality
improvement
-Enhance
customer care
services

-Training
reports
-customer care
desk
-Minutes of the
change agents

-Training of staff on
KQMH
-Customer qre
desks
-minutes of change
agent

-Customer
(:tre
introduced at
outpatient
-Monthly
meetings for
change agents
achieved

Ium
evel

tn resource
)pment

-Improved
performance
management

-Human
resource
reports
-Staff appraisal
reports

-Conduct quarterly
and annual staff
appraisal

-staff
apprarsal done

-Staff mot ivat ion -Staff
satisfaction
-Client
satisfaction

-staff recognition
rewards and
sanctions
-Annual staff party
-Staff involvement
on decision making
Remuneration

-All staff are
involved in

decision
making
through
variow
committees,
HMT,
Departmental
meeting

,ead

ove
)rship and
nancc

-Enhance policy
formulatiort
dissemination and
implementatron

Toincrease in
hospital
performance
-No of staff
meetings
-No of HMB
meetings

-Monthly staff
meetings
-quarterly board
meetings
-Implementation of
strategic plan

-Quarterly
board
meetings
achieved with
few special
meetings
.HMT
meetings done

l

t

leat
nd
rainr

h information
research and

lgs

-Strengthen
coordinate and
rurnage health
information

-Maintain ICT
infrastructure to
ensure full
functionality of the
system

-Quarterb
servicing and
nraintenance
of the system
done

vlec
rac(

ech

ical
ines

products
and

lology

-strengthen
coordinate and
marurge medical
products supply
chain
-enhance ethical
research activities

%oreduction on
stock outs
-HMIS report
Bin Cards
Complete
Registers
Sops in place

-Annual forecasting
-Prepare monthly
and annual report
-Prepare
documentation of
services provided

-forecasting
done
-annual and
monthly
reports done
- stock out
reduced by
5Oo/o

-Timely provision
of health products

-Client
satisfaction
-Availabilrty of
products
7o of reduction
in stock our

-Strengthening of
procurement
process
-lmplementation
of procurement
plan

-Procurement
plan in place and
functioning
-reduction in
stock out by
approximately
3U/o

xt
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t

VII. Corporate Governance Statement

Kabartonjo Hospital Board of management is responsible for the governance of the Hospital and is
accountable to County Department of health, Baringo County, ensuring that the hospital complies
with the laws and the highest standards of corporate governance and business ethics. The Board
members attach great importance to the need to conduct the business and operations of the Hospital
with integrity and in accordance with generally accepted corporate practice and endorse the
internationally developed principles of good corporate governance.
Board of Management
The board of management is composed of non-executive members appointed by the govemor of
Baringo County. The Appointed Board of Management to be held accountable and responsible for
the efficient and effective governance of the hospital. Members of the Board have a range of skills
and experience and each brings an independent judgement and considerable knowledge to the
Board's discussions. The Board term is tlrree (3) years renewable once subject to perfbnrrance.

Role of the Hospital Management Boards and Committees in Management of F'unds

In accordance to the Baringo County Health services improvement fund Act,202l Sections l5 & 16,
the expenditure decisions of the hospital management boards or facility committees are bound by the
provisions of the Public Finance Management Act,20l2 and the Public Procurement and Disposal of
Assets Act,20l5 and that The hospital management committee shall;

In supervising and controlling the administration of all Funds, the Health Services Management
Committee shall;

a) Ascertain the available Funds andtheir sources
b) Guide the hospital administration on user fees, unit costs, exemptions and waivers, as prescribed by
the county HISF Board; ensure expenditures conform with the Fund regulations, the Public Finance
Management Act and any other written law
c) Ensure compliance with financial planning cycle
d) Ensure mitigation against financial risk and
e) Facilitate intemal and extemal audit work as required under the Public Finance Management Act
and the Pr.rblic Audit Act.

xll

a) Review the proposed budgets to ensure they are linked to the priorities outlined in the Quarterly
Implementation Plans and Annual Work Plan.
b) Ensure the proposed budgets are based on the available resources
c) Approve the proposed budgets after review.
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Meetings

d as per annual work plan rneets quarterly or additionally when necessary to consider matters
all control of the hospital. The board met five times in the year and were remunerated
ces as per Government of Kenya circulars guiding board allowances

ittees ofthe Board

spital Board had two standing committees;
ance and developrnent committee

ce delivery and quality improvement committee

l/operational performance

acity of the hospital

patient attendance during the year, for both inpatient and outpatient.

OPD attendance

20728
14437

ll

1021-202

Management Discussion and Analysis

76111

I

5

)

i

l

2019-2020 202C!2021

t2
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Accident and Emergency attendance
No accident and emergency service area

Specialised clin ic attendance

4mo

1500

3mo

2500

2mo

1500

100
5m

o

Avera len

Bed occupancy rate

---
TP,

of sta for in tient

CCC EYE

r 20192020 r 202G2021 .2021-2022

Specialitv clinic Attendance

.J
PSYCHIATRIC

Average length of stay for inpatient

Period
2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2021-
2022

Days 3 3 -t
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Bed Occupancv Rate

1%

2019 2020 202G 2021

Hospital rnortality rate

lo/o

o

th tre tilisation (number of operations over a period of time)

%
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Deliveries by skilled labour

DELIVERIES BY SKILLED LABOR
510

500

490
480
470

460
450

440
430

420
20L9-202() 202o.2(J27 2021- 2022

WAIVERS AND EXCEPTIONS
The hospital management granted waivers and exceptions amounting a total of ksh.86,160 in the year

WAIVERS AND EXCEPTIONS
12()q)o

I ()4 /OO

1o(]mo
a6 160

AC)oCIC

6@@

4moo 32 790

2 CDOO

2 019-2020 2()2(} 2() 21 2(J21- 2|D22

5()0
494

448

o

xvl



a
A

Level 4 Hospital (Baringo County Government)
rt and Financiul Statementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

REVENUE COLLECTION FROM 2019/20.202I-2022 FY

2019-20

Q1

2021-22

202G27

()

o2 Q]

a

a

a

a

of F'unds
ent sources

atlent servlces
F reimbursements

of Funds
sumers of the funds are

d Casual wages

cal drugs and non-pharm aceuticals
ory materials supplies and small equip

and ration
tenance of building and station

elugo
rl tendent

! 201920 I 202G21 . )O21-))

S

l,
I

llru

EVT LLEt. I 0N F'R tvt 20l9 020-2021
P R1 )D Qr Q2 Q3 Q4 TOTAL
) rl9, 20 123177 5 1390760 2047010 t315390 5,984,9J5

2t 713700 650750 288405 635505 2,288,360
2 21. 22 t42,349 3n4952 1026960 t6l t255 6,210,697

MtY 202rr
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I

PENDING BILLS AS AT 3OTH JI,]NE, 2022

CODE NAMF- ITEM DESCRIPTION ACCRUED

21t0202
MEDSUPT
KABARTONJO

CASUAL
MARCH.JUNE

WAGES
377.142

2210 r 0r KENYA POWER ELECTRICITY BILLS 196,500.00

22tOt02
KIRANDICH
WATER CO.LTD WATER BILLS 77.000.00

2210203
POSTAL
CORPORATION POSTAL RENEWAL 650 00

22tt20t
TOBIL FILLING
STA'TION REF-INED FUEL DIESEL 70,000.00

22r r0l5
RAGONY
INVESTMENTS

PERISHABLE FOODS .
MILK 20.800 00

22il0t5
TUIMARC
ENTERPRISES DRY F'OOD

221 l0l 5 JULIAS GROCERY
FRESH FOODS
VEGETABLES 9. 100.00

221 l0l 5

PAMOJA
ENTERPRISES BREAD 14,780

221 l0l 5

SIMOT
POSHOMILL GRINDING SERVICES 5.955.00

22ll0l5 LETIO BUTCHERY RED MEAT 2t,700

221 1008
SAMADAC
DIAGNOSTIC LAB REAGENTS 2t2,400.oo

22ll001
MEDICAL
STATIONARY 103,600 00

221 l00l
KETBONET
BOOKSTORES OFFICE STATIONARY 41,550.00

221l00l
JEFSAN
ENTERPRISES CLEANING MATERIALS 28,000 00

221 I 103 KEZEM AGENCIES
HARDWARE
MATERIALS 61550

2220205
KOIMET
HARDWARE

MOTOR
REPAIRS

VEHICLE
9200

22tt204
KIPTABUT
SAWMILL I,'IREWOOD t0,000.00

2211204
AFRICOM
ENTERPRISES

IT EQTIIPMENTS
REPAIRS . CCTV 6.350.00

3rl1002
ONSET
TECHNOLOGIES PHOTOCOPIER REPAIR 57050

3r l1002
MERCY
UNIFORMS STAFF UNIFORMS 20,000 00

22ll0l5 CEREALS MILLETA{AIZElBEANS 10,100.00

21t0202 NSSF.CASUALS 20I4.I5 REMIITANCE 35.000.00

221 l00l RIWO CHEMIST

NON
PHARMACEUTICAL
SUPPLIES

1'OTALS 1,391,027

xvl ll

MERIC PRINTERS
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i ronmental and Sustainability Reporting
onjo Sub County Hospital has mandate to transfonn and save lives, our priority is to deliver

ervices and emphasize on activities that promote sustainability to the citizens

tainability strategy and profile

'spital has assessed its current resources and highlighted the following areas as a way of

ng financial income

enng specla lized laboratory services e.g biochemistry

iate dental unit

tionalize the skilled Xray

phasizing on NHIF subscription and choosing our facility as a point of semi delivery Edu Afya

da mama

pletion and operationalization of theatre

ronmental performance

to ensure public health safety for both staffand our clients we have introduced the following

truction of patient ramps

gation of waste using the colour coded bins

taining of drainage system

truction of more pit latrines

r of waste pit

e environmental hygiene

cial constraints due to routine repairs

cost of electricity bil I

of Staff

of funds disbursement

rcduce environmental impact of waste products

ator available for burning waste.

disposal site fenced to keep offpredators

e

f

a.

b.

c.

d.

E
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u

o
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le
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Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospital (Baringo County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

Employees are hired by the County Public Service Board and others are contracted by the hospital
management board.
Staff gains their skills via on job training, seminars and workshops. The hospital checks regularly in
the welfare of the staff intern of working environment and utilities required to leave then work
optionally

iv) Market place practices-

a) Responsible competition practice.
Open tendering process and committee involvement

b) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations
Good tracking ofsupplies from tendering to delivery

c) Responsible marketing and advertisement
This is done through barazas and public notice board

d) Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements
Conducting outreach to the community as a way of increasing accessibility to health care

X. Report of the Board of Management
The Board members submit their report together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended June 30,2022, which show the state ofthe hospital's aftairs.

Principal activities
The principal activities ofthe hospital are;
- Maternity in patient services
- Referrals services
- VCT and Counselling
- Curative services
- Laboratory services
- TB clinics
- Diabetes and hypertension services
- Antenatal and postnatal services
- Comprehensive care clinics for patients living with HIV
- Baby well clinics
- Pharmacy
- X ray services
-Physiotherapy and orthopaedic trauma services

Results
The results of the Kabartonjo level 4 Hospital for the year ended June 30 are set out on page xiv to
xix

Board of Management
The members of the Board who served during the year are shown on page vii

t

xx



a

A
Level 4 Hospital (Baringo County Government)
rt and Financial Statementsfor The Yeur Ended 3dh June 2022

rs
ditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Kabartonjo level 4 Hospital in
ce with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015 orXYZ

ed Public Accountants were nominated by the Auditor General to carry out the audit of the
onjo level 4 Hospital for the yearlperiod ended June 30, 2022 in accordance to section 23 of
lic Audit Act, 2015 which empowers the Auditor General to appoint an auditor to audit on his

ofthe Board

igned by the Secretary ofthe Board)

tement of Board of Management's Responsibilifies

164 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires the Board of Management to
financial statements in respect of that Kabartonjo Hospital, which give a true and fair view of
ofaffairs ofthe Kabartonjo level 4 Hospital at the end ofthe financial year/period and the

g results of the Kabartonjo level 4 Hospitalfor that year/period. The Board of Management is
uired to ensure that the Kabartonjo level 4 Hospital keeps proper accounting records which
with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Kabartonjo Hospital. The council
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets ofthe Kabartonjo Hospital

of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Kabartonjo
's financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Kabartonjo
ospital for and as at the end of the financial year (period) ended on June 30, 2022. This

bility iucludes: (i) maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring
continue to be effective throughout the reporting period, (ii) maintaining proper accounting

which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Kabartonjo
, (iii) designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation
presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material
ents, whether due to error or fraud, (iv) safeguarding the assets ofthe Kabartonjo Hospital;
ng and applying appropriate accounting policies, and (vi) making accounting estimates that

nable in the circumstances
of Management accepts responsibility for the Kabartonjo Hospital's financial statements,

ve been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent
ts and estimates, in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards
and in the manner required by the PFM Act,2012 and (- entities should quote applicable
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le as indicated under). The Board members are of the opinion that the Kabartonjo Hospital's
fi statements give a true and fair view of the state of Kabartonjo Hospital's transactions during
tlr year ended June 30, 2022 nd of the Kabartonjo Hospital's financial position as at that

Board members fi.rther confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for
o Hospital, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the Kabartonjo Hospital's

ements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial control.
come to the attention of the Board of management to indicate that the Kabartonjo level 4

ll not remain a going concem for at least the next twelve months from the date of this
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Kabarlonjo Level 4 Hospital (Baringo County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Stutementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

Functions of the Health Management Board s or Committees
The health management boards or committees shall; -
a) Approve budgets, progr:rmmes and work plans of their respective hospitals and health facilities
b) Prepare the Fund's annual budget and work plans to be adopted by the County Health Services
Improvement Fund Board
c) Formulate, recommend and implernent resource mobilization strategies
d) Identify implementation challenges and take corrective measures;

e) Make recommendations for changes in user fee charges

0 Determine such nurnber of standing committees and composition of ad hoc committees
g) Ensure periodic expenditure returns are prepared and submitted to the relevant supervisory offices
h) Provide oversight over usage of financial resources by the respective hospitals' facilities'
adrninistration.

Role of the Hospital Management Boards and Committees in Management of Funds
The expenditure decisions of the hospital management boards or facility committees shall be bound
by the provisions of the Public Finance Management Act,2012 and the Public Procurement and
Disposal of Assets Act,20l5.

The hospital management committee shall;

d) Review the proposed budgets to ensure they are linked to the priorities outlined in the Quarterly
lmplementation Plans and Annual Work Plan.
e) Ensure the proposed budgets are based on the available resources

0 Approve the proposed budgets after review.
In supervising and controlling the adminisfation of all Funds, the Health Services Management
Committee shall,

0 Ascertain the available Funds and their sources
g) Guide the hospital administration on user fees, unit costs, exemptions and waivers, as prescribed by
the county HISF Board; ensure expenditures conform with the Fund regulations, the Public Finance
Management Act and any other written law
h) Ensure compliance with financial planning cycle
i) Ensure mitigation against financial risk and
j) Facilitate intemal and extemal audit work as required under the Public Finance Management Act
and the Public Audit Act.

Approval of the financial statements

The Hospital's financial statements were approved by the Board on and signed on
rt
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL
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HEADOUARTERS
Anniversary Towers

Monrovia Street
P.O. Box 3oo84-ooroo

NAIROBI

ORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON KABARTONJO LEVEL 4 HOSPITAL FOR
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022 - COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF BARINGO

MBLE

your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which
considers compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices,
circulars, guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a
prudent, efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure that the
Govemment achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the
intended purpose.

Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

nmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
nt laws and regulations and that its internal control, risk management and

rnance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
under review.

three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
nsibililies of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 ol the Constitution, the

ic Finance Managemenl Acl,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
port, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General

ORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

lified Opinion

audited the accompanying financial statements of Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospital -
Government of Baringo set out on pages 1 to 51 , which comprise of the statement

ofthe Auditor-General on Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospitalfor theyear ended 30June,2022 - County Governmenl
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)a
of financial position as at 30 June, 2022, and the statement of financial performance,
statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison
of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions
of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I

have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospital - County Government of
Baringo as at 30 June, 2022 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards
(Accrual Basis) and comply with the Public Finance Managemenl Act,2012, the County
Governments Act, 2012 and the Health Act,2017.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Variance in Transfers from the County Government

The statement of financial performance reflects an amount of Kshs.6,240,697 in respect
to transfers from the county government as disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements.
However, analysis of schedules and bank statements provided for audit revealed an
amount of Kshs.8,445,157 resulting to an unexplained variance of Kshs.2,204,460.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of transfers from the county
government amount of Kshs.6,240,697 could not be confirmed.

2. Undisclosed Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions

The statement of financial performance reflects Nil revenue from in-kind contributions
from the County Government and Grants from donors and development partners.
However, analysis of records provided for audit revealed in-kind contributions from the
County Government in form of medical drugs amounting to Kshs.2,215,394, donations
and program commodities amounting to Kshs.2,969,950 and Universal Health Coverage
(UHC) products amounting to Kshs.79,901 totalling Kshs.5,265,245 that were not
disclosed in the financial statements.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of Nil amounts in respect of in-kind
contribution from the county government and grants from donors and development
partners could not be confirmed.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County Government
of Baringo
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3. lnaccuracies in the Cash and Cash Equivalents Balance

The statement of financial position reflects a balance of Kshs.510,279 in respect to cash
and cash equivalents as disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements. However, review
of the records revealed the Hospital bank account with a balance of Kshs.2,331,160



eport
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op ated by the County treasury which was not disclosed in the financial statements and
wh se cash book and bank reconciliation statements were not provided for audit review

ln e circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of cash and cash equivalents
bal nce of Kshs.510,279 could not be confirmed

4 on-Disclosure of Receivables from Exchange Transactions Balance

Th
exc
revi

revr
mai

The
30t

tatement of financial position reflects Nil inventories balance as disclosed in Note
the financial statements. However, review of the stock cards revealed drugs of

unde rmined value held in the Hospital's stores as at 30 June,2022

ln th

Ksh 1,707,600 from the National Health lnsurance Fund (NHIF). Further, NHIF
ack owledged only claims amounting to Kshs.717,360 resulting to unexplained variance
ofK hs.990,240

lnt e circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of Nil balance in respect to
rec vables from exchange transactions could not be confirmed

5. n-Disclosure of Property, Plant and Equipment Balance

The
equi

tatement of financial position reflects nil balance in respect of property, plant and
ment as disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements. However, review of the

Hos ital's records and physical inspection revealed various assets including land,
ngs, motor vehicles, furniture, computers and equipment which were not disclosedbuil

in th financial statements. Further, ownership documents were not provided for audit
and the Hospital's land has not been valued and an assets register was not

ained

lnt circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and ownership of Nil balance in
resp ct to property, plant and equipment could not be confirmed

6.N n-Disclosure of lnventories Balance

statement of financial position reflects Nil balance in respect to receivables from
ange transactions as disclosed in Note 28 of the financial statements. However,
w of records provided for audit revealed outstanding claims balance of

circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of Nil balance in respect of
ories could not be confirmed.nve

N n-Disclosure of Trade and Other Payables Balance

he tatement of financial position reflects Nil balance in respect to trade and other
aya les as disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements. However, Appendix lll and
ll to the financial statements reflects pending bills balance of Kshs.1 ,391,027 some of

ating back to the year 2020

the Auditor-General on Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County Covernment
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ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of Nil balance in respect of trade
and other payables could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospital Managemen in
accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources and Qualified Opinion sections of my
report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
public resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Failure to Prepare Budget Estimates

The statement of financial performance reflects total revenue and expenditure amounts
of Kshs.6,240,697 and Kshs.5,781,568 respectively. However, Management did not
prepare budget estimates for both revenue and expenditure contrary to Regulation 29 (1)
and (2) of the Public Finance Management (County Governments) Regulations, 2015
which requires the accounting officer to prepare draft estimates relating to her or his
department and to ensure that all services are included in the estimates.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2. !rregular Engagement of Casuals Workers

The statement of financial performance reflects employee costs of Kshs.1,688,771 as
disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements which relate to payment of wages to
sixteen (16) casual workers. However, the casual workers were engaged for more than
five (5) years without contracts of service contrary to Section 37(1) (a) and (b) of the
Employment Act, 2007 which states that notwithstanding any provisions of this Act, where
a casual employee works for a period or a number of continuous working days which

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County Government

of Baringo
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am unt in the aggregate to the equivalent of not less than one month and performs work
whi h cannot reasonably be expected to be completed within a period, or a number of

ing days amounting in the aggregate to the equivalent of three months or more, the
ract of service of the casual employee shall be deemed to be one where wages are
monthly and section 35(1)(c) shall apply to that contract of service.

lnt circumstances, Management was in breach of the law

ilure to Remit lnaccurate Statutory Deductions and Remittance
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statement of financial performance reflects employee costs of Kshs.1,688,771 as
sed in Note 16 to the financial statements. lncluded in this amount is the National
I Security Fund (NSSF)employee deductions amounting to Kshs.76,800. However,
was no evidence of the corresponding employer contribution. This was contrary to

on 20 (1) (a) and (b) of the National Social Security Fund Act, 2013 which states
from the commencement date and subject to the provisions of sub-section (3) and

n 21, an employer shall pay to the Pension Fund in respect of each employee in
her employment the employer's contribution at six per centum of the employee's
ly pensionable earnings and the employee's contribution at six per centum of the
yee's pensionable earnings deducted from the employee's earnings.

circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

n-compliance with Kenya Quality Model for Health Policy Guidelines

t meet the requirements of Kenya Quality Model for Health Policy Guidelines due

Revi w of Hospital records and interviews on verification of services offered, equipment
sed
idn

nd medical specialists in the Hospital at the time of audit revealed that the Hospital

ost deficits by ninety (90) staff requirements or 89% of the authorized establishment

ion, the hospital lacked the necessary equipment and machines outlined in the
Policy Guidelines as detailed below

the Auditor-General on Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County Government
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LStafl IRequirements
Level4
Standard

Number in
the in
Hospital Variance Percentage 7o

Medi cal officers 14 88

Anes thesiologists 2

Genr ral surgeons 2 0 2

Gyne cologists 2 0 2 100

Pedi: trics 2 0 2 100

Radi rlogists 2 2

Keny]
Comr
nurse

l Registered
nunity Health
S

75 I 66 88

Total 101 11 90 89
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Service

Level 4
Hospital
Standard

Actuals in
the Hospital Variance

Percentage
Yo

Beds 150 44 106 71

New Born Unit
lncubators

5 1 4 80

New Born Unit Cots 5 1 4 80

Functional ICU Beds 6 0 6 100
High Dependency
Unit (HDU) Beds

6 0 6 100

Renal Unit with at
least 5 Dialysis
Machines

5 0 5 100

Two Functional
Operational
Theatres-Maternity &
General

2 0 2 100

These deficiencies contravene the First Schedule of Health Act, 2017 and imply that
accessing the highest attainable standard of health, which includes the right to health
care services, including reproductive health care as required by Article 43(1) of the
Constitution of Kenya, 2010 may not be achieved.

ln the circumstances, the understaffing and inadequate hospital equipment negatively
have impacted on service delivery to the public.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - Counly Government

of Baringo
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Ba is for Conclusion

1 xpired Medical Commodities

Re ew of stock control cards indicated that eight (8) quantities of various medical
CO odities valued at Kshs.9,150 had expired as at 30 June,2022 and had not been
dis sed-off by the time of audit in Aprll2O24

lnt e circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls on management and
des ction of expired drugs could not be confirmed

fulfilled Orders for Medical Supplies

Revi
com

w of requisitions indicated that the Hospital ordered 45,937 units of various medical
odities from the Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) out of which 27,927

unit or 610/o of the orders were delivered resulting to unfulfilled orders of 18,010 units or
Further, there was no evidence to show that the unfulfilled orders were procured
ther sources to ensure continuous availability of medical commodities

ln th circumstances, the highest standards of health services delivery as envisaged in
the nstitution of Kenya may not be realized

r lnventory Management

evr of delivery notes revealed that the Hospital received medical products valued at
hs 6,484,210. However, the stock cards used to issue the medical products to various

epa ents in the Hospital did not indicate the batch number and the expiry dates. lt was
here
hep

re not possible to establish whether the issuance of the medial products followed

uid
hat edical products are issued from the store through the principle of First Expiry First

EFO).ut(

rh circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls on issuance of medical
rodu could not be confirmed

S ck-Outs of Medical Commodities

evte of inventory records indicated that six (6) commodities were stocked out for
etwe n one (1) and three (3) months. Further, there were no policy guidelines on the
qulr d re-order levels to confirm whether commodities were procured within the
qurr d stock levels

the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls on management of stock

the Auditor-General on Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County Government
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nciple of First Expiry First Out (FEFO). This was contrary to the Ministry of Health
ines on Management of Health Products and Technologies, 2020 which require
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orde levels could not be confirmed.



The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Management

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Hospital's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to the sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting
unless Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Hospital or to cease
operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
Hospital's activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial
statements are in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public
money is applied in an effective manner.

The Board of Management is responsible for overseeing the Hospital's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to overall
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - Counly Government
of Baringo
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rea
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rror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
nably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
se financial statements.

to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
ts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may

se of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
tements and instances of noncompliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of

f

lna dition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance review is planned and
perf rmed to express a conclusion with limited assurance as to whether, in all material
res cts, the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial
stat ments are in compliance with the authorities that govern them in accordance with
the rovisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution and submit the audit report in
com liance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. The nature, timing and extent of the
com liance work is limited compared to that designed to express an opinion with
reas nable assurance on the financial statements

Furt er, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and review of
com liance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of in rnal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
acco ance with the provisions of Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the dit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of

ernal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not

the i

migh

edu
IC

mo
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ccu and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
erfo ing their assigned functions

sp

ffect eness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
nade uate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
olici s and procedures may deteriorate.

rt of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
dge ent and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also

entify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
hether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
rose risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
sis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
ud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

f

aluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
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rgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.
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a

a

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Hospital's ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Hospital to cease to continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

a Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Hospital to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA BS

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospitolfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County Government
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njo Level 4 Hospital (Baringo County Government)
rt and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3dh lune 2022A alR

3. Statement of Financial Performance for The Year Ended 30 June 2022

Rr venue ftom non-exchange transactions

Tr usfers from the County Government 6(b) 6,240,697

In kind contributions from the County Govemment

Gr ants from donors and developrnent partners 8

Tr usfers frorn other Govemment entities 9

Pr blic contributions and donations

T rtal Revenue from non-exchange transactions 6,240,697

Rr venue from exchange transactions

Rr ndering of services- Medical Service lncome ll
Rr venue from rent of facilities 12

Fi tance /Interest lncome

O1 her income (specify) - Sell of Water l4

Rr rvenue from exchange transactions

Tr tal revenue from exchange transactions 6,240,697

E penses

M ldical/Clinical costs 15 2,561,010

Et rployee costs t6 1,688,771

Br ,ard of Management Expenses l7 I I 1,000

Dr rpreciation and arnortization expense l8

pairs and maintenance 19 826,424

G ants and subsidies 20

G ,neral expenses 2l 594,363

Fi rance costs 22

T, rtal expenses 5,781,568

o :her gains / (losses)

G rin on disposal of non-Current assets ZJ

U rrealized gain on fair value of investments 24

7
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Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospital (Baringo County Government)
Annual Reporl and Financiul Statementsfor The Year Ended 3dh Jane 2022

4. Statement of Financial Position as of 30th J:une 2022

Assets

(lu rrent assets

Cash and cash equivalents 27 510,279

Receivables from exchange transactions 28

Receivables fiom non-exchange transactions 29

Inventories 30

Total Current Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant, and equipment 3l

32

Investment property 33

Total Non-cu rrent Assets
'I'otal assets 510,279

Liabilities

Current liahilities

Trade and other payables 34

Refundable deposits fr om customers/Pati ents 35

Provision s 36

Finance lease obligation 37

Current portion of deferred income 38

Current portion of bonowings 39

Total (lurrent t,iabilities
Non-cu rrent liabilities

Provision s 36

Non{urrent Finance lease obligation 37

Non-Current portion of deferred income 38

Non - Current portion of borrowings 39

Service concession liability 40

Total Non-current liabilities
'I'otal Liabilities

a

Intangible assets



N )ta isets

R, )val Jatlon reserye

A )cr.lt lulated surplus/Deficit 2',7 510,279

C] rplti rl Fund

I

T rtal Net Assets and l-iabilities 510,279

,t al
ajo Level 4 Hospital (Baringo County Government)
Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3dh Jane 2022
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Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospital (Baringo County Government)
Annaal Report ond Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

5. Statement ofChanges in Net Asset for The Year Ended 30 June 2022

(Note:
I . For items that are not common in the financial statements, the Kabartonjo Hospital should

include a note on what they relate to - either on the face of the statement of changes in
equity/net assets or among the notes to the financial statements.

2. Prior year adjustments should have an elaborate note describing what the amounts relate to.
In such instances, a restatement of the opening balances needs to be done.)

(The notes set out on pages 25 o,501'fomr an,irr

The Hospital's financia.l stat :'lF *"i'&TSiI".'"{'I the B@rd on

;il ,"; oiItL annuut Financial Staternents.)

as\orbor* and

2 , MAy lLltt
xABA,rrr{Jo su iJ cou/\T'l tr)3i.iTAL
, o.6 {lA}o,4- t ulr(utuc*di(*,o.

- .i)i) 1.. .)" tz
9u^\\,t '1 . chrr.oi,iro *

@
J

Board of lVlanagement
Head ofFinance (4
ICPAK No: a\gso

1\l cal Su perintend

l r.)-
ent n --

4-u

As at July l,2021

Revaluation gain

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 5l ,150

C apital,/Devel opm ent grants

At July l,2022

Revaluation gain

SurpluV(deficit) for the year 459.129

Capital/Development grants

At June 30.2022 sl0r79
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Statement of Cash Flows for The Year Ended 30 June 2022

AS 2 allows Kabartonjo Hospital to present the cash flow statement using the direct or

6

( nsh flows fro m operating activities
T{..u pts

:anl fers from the County Government 6(b) 6,240,697

( ran s from donors and development partners

ralll fers from other Government entities

rbli ; contributions and donations

t enc :ring of services- Medical Service Income

Lcve rue liom rent of facilities

inar ce / interest income
( the ' receipts(specify)

I ota Receipts 6,210,697

I ayl rents

t\ {ed cal/Clinical costs t5 2,s61 ,0 r 0

t lnp oyee costs l6 1 ,688,771

T oaI I of Management Expenses l7 I I 1,000

T ,epi irs and maintenance t9 826,424

rIan( ts and subsidies

( r()ll( ral expenses 2t 594,363

l'ot rl Payments 5,781,568

I let :ash flows from operating activities .159,129

( lasl flows from investing activities

I )urc hase ofproperty, plant, equipment, & intangible assets
rroc eeds from the sale ofproperty, plant, and equipment

\cq risition of investments

I tlet cash flows used in investing activities
( -as t flows from financing activities
I -ap tal grants received

tlet cash flows used in financing activities
trlet increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 159,129

as and cash equivalents at I July 202 I 51,t50
1 ..as and cash equivalents at 30 July 2022 27 510,279

IPi

t

4

I



Kobartonjo Level 4 Hospital (Baringo County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Stotementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

indirect method but encourages the direct method. PSASB also recommends the use of direct
method of cash flow preparation).

The notes set out on pages 25 to 50 form an integral part of the cial Statements
The Hospital's financial pffle ,appro d
SI its behalf by (r1'f
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Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospital (Boringo Coutttl' Government)
,4nnunl Report snd Finoncial Statentents for The l'eur Ende(l 3dt' lune 2022

a b c:(a+b) d
":1c_d)

f:d/c"/"
Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Revenue
Transfers from the County Government 6,240,697 6,240,697 6,240,697 o//o

Grants from donors and development
partners

o//o

Transfers from other Government entities %
Public contributions and donations o//o

Rendering of services- Medical Service
Income

o//o

Revenue from rent of facilities %
Finance / interest income o//t)

Other receipts (speci&)
o//o

Total income 6,240,697 6,,240,697 6,240,697 o.//o

Expenses
Medical/Clinical costs 2,561,010 2,s61,010 2,561,0 I 0 o//o

Employee costs I ,688,771 1,688,771 1,688,771 o//o

Remuneration of directors (Board) I I 1,000 I I 1,000 I I 1,000 o//o

Repairs and maintenance 826,424 826,424 826,424 %
Grants and subsidies o//o

General expenses 594,363 s94,363 594,363
Finance costs %
Total Expenses 5,781,568 5,781,569 5,781,568 o./

,/o

Surplus for the period 459,129 459,,129 459,129
Capital expenditure o//o

o//o

%
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Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospitol (Baringo County Government)
Annual Report und Finonciol Stotementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

(Budget notes
L Provide an explanation of differences between actual and budgeted amounts (l0o/o overl under) IPSAS 24. l4
2 Provrde an explanation of changes between the original and final budget indicating whether the difference is due to
reallocations or other causes. (IPSAS 24.29)
3. Where the total of actual on comparable basis does not tie to the statement of financial performance totals due to differences in
accounting basis (budget is cash basis, statement of financial performance is accrual) provide a reconciliation. )

The notes set out on pages 25 to 50 form an inte al of the Annual Financial statements
wete approved by the Board on ol by
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Notes To the Financial Statements

General lnformation

ovem

oojo Hospital is established by and derives its authority and accountability from county

nrent act. The Kabartonjo Hospital is wholly owned by the Govemment of Kenya and is

led in Kenya. The Ifubartonjo Hospital's principal activity is to offer level IV services.cl

Statement of Compliance and Basis Of Preparation

e financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement

re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant, and equipment, marketable securities and

nancial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts and

ally determined liabilities at their present value. The preparation of financial statements in

formity with Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of
mateg and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of

pplylng the Kabartonjo Hospital's accounting policies.The areas involving a higher degree of
udgment or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial

tements, are disclosed in Note xxThe financial statements have been prepared and presented in

ya Shillings, which is the functional and reporting currency of the Kabartonjo Hospital

o financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, and (include any

er applicable legislation), and Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The

unting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

Adoption of New and Revised Standards

ASB defened the application date of standards from l'r January 2022 owingto Covidlg. This

done to provide entities with time to effectively apply the standards. The defenal was set for I "t

uy 2Q23.

l0

l.
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Kabartonjo l,evel 4 Hospital (Raringo County Government)
Annual Reporl and F-inancial Statements for The Year Endetl 3dh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

r. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the year ended

30 June 2022.

IPSAS 41:

Financial

Instruments

Applicable: l'r January 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financial reporting of
financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and useful information to

users of financial statements for their assessment of the amounts, timing and

uncertainty of lGbartonjo Hospital's future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful information than

IPSAS 29, bY:

. Applying a singlc classification and measurement model fbr financial assets

that considers the characteristics of the asset's cash flows and the objective

for which the asset is held;

. Applying a single forwardJooking expected credit loss model that is

applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment testing; and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the hedging

arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model develops a strong link

between Ifubartonjo Hospital's risk management strategies and the

accounting treatment for instruments held as part of the risk management

strategy.

IPSAS 42:

Social Benefits

Applicable: l" January 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful representativeness

and comparability of the information that a reporting Kabartonjo Hospital provides in

its financial statements about social benefits. The information provided should help

users ofthe financial statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Kabartonjo Hospital;

(b) The key features of the operation ofthose social benefit schemes; and

il
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and I'insncial Statements of The Year Entled 3dh June 2022

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the lGbartonjo Hospital's

financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

I

I

I

hments to

f*o.
frg Aom
I

lo''
liu'
nents

ApplicaHe: lst January 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the components of
borrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was

issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustative examples on hedging and

credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for

financial guarantee contracts which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS

4l was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classirying financial

instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

ements topr

I S

Applicable l*t January 2023

I 43 Applicable l't January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recogtition, measurement, presentation,

and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide

relevant information in a manner that faithfully represents those transactions. This

l2

t

Ar

re

n

in o IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General Government

Sector.

Amendments to refer to the latest System of National Accounts (SNA 2008).

o IPSAS 39: Employee Benefits

Now deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no longer defined in

IPSAS.

o IPSAS 29: Financial imtrumenh! Recognition and Measurement

Standard no longer included in the 2021 IPSAS handbook as it is now superseded by

IPSAS 4 I which is applicable from I'r Jaruuy 2023.



Kabanonjo l.evel 4 Hospital (llaringo County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Stalementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the effect that

leases have on the financial position, financial performance and cashflows of
Kabartonjo Hospital.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present information on

right ofuse assets and lease liabilities.

IPSAS 44: Non-

Current Assets

Held for Sale

and

Discontinued

Operations

Applicable I't January 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured at the

lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the depreciation on such

assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented separately

in the statement of financial position and the results of discontinued operations to be

presented separately in the statement of financial performance.

Early adoption of standards

The Kabartonjo Hospital did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the year

202112022

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a) Revenue recognition

i. Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfers from other Government entities

Revenues fiom non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair value

and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services, and property) if the transfer is

free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential related to the

asset will flow to the Kabartonjo Hospital and can be measured reliably.

t3
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the Financial Statements (Continued)

e from crchange transrctions
g of scrvices

atonjo Hospital recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of
on whcn the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of complaion is

by re'ference to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated labour hours

the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent that

ses incurred are recoverable

goods

from 0re sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have

sferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the amount of revenue can be

reliably, and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the

will flow to the Kabartonjo Hospital

t incorm

income is accrued using the effective leld method. The effective yield discounts estimated

h receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount

od applies this yield to the principal outstanding to detsrmine interest income for each period

3

ds or similar distributions must be recognized when the shareholder's or the Kabartonjo

's right to receive payments is established

lnconle

income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line

ver the lease terms and included in revenue.

t4
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Kabartonjo l.evel 4 Httspital (Baringo County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Endetl 3dh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

b) Budget information
The original budget for FY 202112022 was approved by Board on 281612021 subsequent revisions or

additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance with specific approvals from

the appropriate authorities. The additional appropriations are added to the original budget by the

Kabartonjo Hospital upon receiving the respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget.

Accordingly, the Kabartonjo Hospital did not record additional appropriations on the FY 202112022

budget. The Kabartonjo Hospital's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and

expenditure disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis

using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas

the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The arnounts in the financial statements were recast from the

accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved

budget.

A comparison of budget and actual zrmounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is

then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. In addition to the Basis

difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also made for differences in the fonnats

and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of the financial statements and the approved

budget. A statement to reconcile the actual arnounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial performance

has been presented under page 7 to 8 ofthese financial statements.

l5
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the Financial Statements (Continued)

Taxes

x,/ Value Added Tax

s and assets are recognized net of the amount ofsales tax, except

When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the

taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of
thc asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included. The net arnount

of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the staternent offinancial position.

Investment propcrty

t properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount

the replacement cost of components of an existing investment property at the time that cost is

if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-day maintenance of an

t prop€rty

t property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair value at the date

sition. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured using the cost model

depreciated over a period of xxx years. Investrnent properties are derecognized either when they

disposed of or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future

c benefit or service potential is expected from its disposal. The diflerence between the net

proceeds and the carrying arnount of the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period

gltitior. Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use

Irrty, plant and equipment

, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

ludes o<penditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. When significant

proPeay, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Kabartonjo Hospital

s such parts

dual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major

on is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a

t if the recogtition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized

us or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or

cqrsideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

l6
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Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospital (Raringo County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statemcntsfir The Year Entted 3dh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

f) Leases

Finance leases are leases that hansfer substantially the entire risks and benefits incidental to ownership of

the leased item to the Kabartonjo Hospital. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized at the

commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the

future minimum lease payments. The Kabartonjo Hospital also recognizes the associated tease liability at

the inception of the lease. The liability recognized is measured as the present value of the future minimum

lease payments at initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction

of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in surplus or deficit.

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no

reasonable certainty that the Kabartonjo Hospital will obtain ownership ofthe asset by the end ofthe lease

term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter ofthe estimated useful life ofthe asset and the lease term.

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to

ownership of the leased itern to the Kabartonjo Hospital. Operating lease payments are recognized as an

operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

g) lntangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets

acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the

date of the exchange. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any

accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. lnternally generated intangible assets,

excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in surplus or

deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful life of the intangible assets is

assessed as either finite or indefinite

t7
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the Flnancial Statements (Continued)

earch and development costs

artonjo Hospital expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual

e technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale

ts intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

e asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

e availability ofresources to complete the asset

e ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

ng initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortization

umulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete

e asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period of expected future benefit. During the

of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually with any impairment losses

ized innnediately in surplus or deficit.

nancial instruments

ial assets

I recognition and measurement

cial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recogrrition and Measurement are

fied as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit, loans and receivables, held+o-

ty lnvestments

lable-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Kabartonjo Hospital determines the

fication of its financial assets at initial recognition

s end receivables

s and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are

oted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently

red at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Amortized cost is

ated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an

ficit

l8
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are recognized as intangible assets when the Kabartonjo Hospital can demonstrate:

part of the effective interest rate. losses arising from impairment are recogrized in the surplus
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Confinued)

Held-tomaturity

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified

as held to maturity when the Kabartonjo Hospital has the positive intention and ability to hold it to
maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-maturity investments are measured at arnortized cost using

the eflective interest method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any

discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest

rate. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in surptus or deficit.

Impairment of financial assets

The Kabartonjo Hospital assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a

financial asset or an Kabartonjo Hospital of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or an

Kabartonjo Hospital of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if and only i[, there is objective

evidence of impairment as a result ofone or more events that have occurred after the initial recognition

of the asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash

flows ofthe financial asset or the Kabartonjo Hospital offinancial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include the following indicators:

). The debtors or an Kabartonjo Hospital of debtors are experiencing significant financial

difliculty

I Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments

L The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization

l Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows (e.g. changes in

arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

l9

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value

through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Ifubartonjo Hospital determines

the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognirion.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings,

plus directly attributable transaction costs.



l,evel 4 Hospital (Baringo County Government)
rt and Financial Statements 0r The Year Entled 3dh June 2022

o the Financial Statements (Continued)

and borrowing

tial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized

g the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in surplus or deficit when the

es are derecognized as well as through the effective interest method amortization process

d cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or

t are an integral part ofthe effective interest rate

lnventories

is measured at cost upon initial recogrition. To the extent that inventory was received through

hange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is its fair value at

of acquisition.

w materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

inished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour, and a proportion of

ufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower cost and net realizable value.

r, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a nominal

, that class of inventory is measured at the lower cost and the current replacement cost.Net

ble value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the estimated

of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or distribution

es are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the ordinary

of operations of the Kabartonjo Hospital

) Provisions

ons are recognized when the Kabartonjo Hospital has a present obligation (legal or constructive)

sult ofa past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or

potential will be required to seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the

t ofthe obligation.

the Kabartonjo Hospital expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under

ce contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement

ly certain

t

tnt rul

No

ln

tes

u

A

incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted foras
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Kabartonjo l,evel 4 Hospital (llaringo County Government)
Annual Reprtrt and Financial Statements for The Year Endetl 3dh June 2022

Not$ to the Financial Statements (Continued)

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the staternent of financial performance net of any

reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities

The lGbartonjo Hospital does not recogrrize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any

contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility ofan outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

Contingent assets

The Kabartonjo Hospital does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details ofa possible asset

whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future

events not wholly within the control of the Kabartonjo Hospital in the notes to the financial statements.

Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the

financial statements. lf it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service

potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are

recogrized in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs.

k) Nafure and purpose of reserves

The Kabartonjo Hospital creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements.

(Kabartonjo Hospital to state the reserves maintained and appropriate policies adopted.)

l) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The lfubartonjo Hospital recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The

effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is

impractical.

m) Employee benefits

Retirement benefi t plans

The IGbartonjo Hospital provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined

contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an Kabartonjo Hospital pays fixed

contributions into a separate Kabartonjo Hospital (a fund), and will have no legal or constructive

obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee

benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund

obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged against income in the year in which they

become payable. Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-

contribution plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the projected unit

credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump-sum payments or increased future

2t
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o l,evel 4 Hospital (Baringo Coune (iovernment)
al and Financial Stutements 0r The Year Entlett 3dh June 2022

utions on a proportional basis to all participating employers. The contributions and lump sum

ts reduce the post-employnent benefit obligation

Foreign currency transactions

ons in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate ofexchange on the date of

saction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reported at the statement

ial position reporting date by appllng the exchange rate on that date. Exchange differences

from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting ofcreditors at rates different from those at

ey were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or expenses in the period

h they arise

rrorving costs

ing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of property, plant and equipment. Such

ng costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired or constnrcted

wings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when construction of the asset is complete

borrowing costs are charged to the statement of financial performance

Related parties

onjo Hospital regards a related party as a person or Kabartonjo Hospital with the ability to

onrol individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Kabartonjo Hospital, or

Mernbers of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the

ncipal and senior managers.

ice concession arrangements

onjo Hospital analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters into in

ining the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In particular, where a

party contributes an asset to the arrangement, the Kabartonjo Hospital recognizes that asset

and only when, it controls or regulates the services. The operator must provide together with the

o whom it must provide them, and at what price. In the case of assets other than 'whole-otlife'

it controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise - any sigrificant residual

in the asset at the end of the arrangement. Any assets so recogrized are measured at their fair

To the extent that an asset has been recognized the Kabartonjo Hospital also recognizes a

onding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received.
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Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospital (Baringo County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Endetl 3dh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call and

highly liquid invesffnents with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily convertible

to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank account

balances include amounts held at the Cental Bank of Kenya and at various commercial banks at the end

of the financial year. For the purposes of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also

include short term cash imprests and advances to authorised public officers and/or institutions which

were not surrendered or accounted for at the end ofthe financial year.

s) Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or reconfigured

to conform to the required changes in presentation.

t) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the financial

statements for the year ended June 30,2022.

5. Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The preparation of the Kabartonjo Hospital's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the

reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes

that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future

periods.

Estimgtes and assumptions

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustrnent to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, iue described below. The Kabartonjo Hospital based

its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were

prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due

to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the confiol of the Kabartonjo Hospital. Such changes

are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.( IPSAS I .140)

z-)
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Financial Statements or The Year Ended 3dh tune 2022

al Statements (Oontinued)

and residual values

lives and residual values ofassets are assessed using the following indicators to inform

use and value from disposal

tion of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Kabartonjo

H

The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

tal

sses

The ature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed

A ability offunding to replace the asset

in the market in relation to the asset

raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available

measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to seftle the

at reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material

ential

The

I

s
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Kabartonjo l.evel 4 Hospital (llaringo County (iovernment)
Annual Rcport and Financial Statements fin The Year Endetl 3dh June 2022

6. Trsnsfers f'rom The County Covernment

Unconditional grants

Operational grant

L,evel 5 grants

Other grants

('onditional grants

User fee forgone

Transforming health services for Universal care project (THUCP)

DANIDA

Wards Developrnent grant

Paediatric block grant

Administration block grant

Laboratory grant

Total government grants and subsidies

25



o l,evel 4 Hospital (Raringo County Government)
ol and l-inancial Statemcnts of The Year Endetl 3dh June 2022

the Financial Statements (Continued)

fers from the Counfy Government

that the amount recorded above as having been received fiom the County fully reconciles to the

t rocorded by the amount recorded as transferred by the County. An acknowledgement note/receipt
be raised in favour of the sending County Government. The details ofthe reconciliation have been

under Appendix V)
Kind Contributions from The County Government

include payments made directly by the County Governments for staff salaries and medical
These should be recorded both as income and expense for completeness of financial statements)

ts From Donors and Development Partners

B
C
G

nnt
runt

rvel

o

'lment 6,240,697 6,240,697

rtal 6,210,697 6,210,697

(E

al

sl

ir
7,

nsu

lout

oult

:lud

Iq

S and wages

P tical and Non-Pharmaceutical Supplies

supplies-Drawings Rights (KEMSA)E[

L m bills

1 rants in kind
(1

d

t.
s

C Centre grant- DANIDA

! d Bank grants

I) c ward grant- JICAe

t ch grants

( grants (specify)
,I

rFt grants from development partners

I

E

EEI
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irr
-
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Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospital (Raringo County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3tlh June 2022

a
t

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

8 (a)Grants from donors and development partners (Classilication)

9. Transfers l-rom Other Government Entities

10. Public (lontrihutions and Donations

Donor e.g., DANIDA

JICA

World Bank
'l'otal

Transfer from National Government (Ministry of Health)

Transfer from xxx National Hospital

Transfer fiom xxx Institute
'l'otal 'l'ransfers

Public donations

Donations from local leadership

Donations from religious institutions

Donations Iiom other intemational organisations and individuals

Other donations(speci&)

Donations in kind-amortised
'I'otal donations and sponsorshi ps
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the Financial Statements (Continued)

econciliations of amortised grants

ering of Services-Medical Service Income

(a

B rla*c unspcnt at beginning of year
C t year receipts

A and transferred to revenue

s to be met - remain liabilities

R

i*P taceuticals

I cn-l alTnaccuticals

Iu,L

F ldi< o

( rthc c and Trauma Technol

1 leal

A ccl( ent and Emergency Service

I nesl hesia Service

t lrh ose and Throat service

I utn on servlce

( anc ,r centre senrce

t enti sen'lces

9prrt rductive health

rcrlif cs servlces

t lre\ 'ell home services
( ther modical servi ces income

revenue from the rendering ofservices

28
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Kabartonjo l-evel 4 Hospital (Raringo County Government)
Annual Report und Financial Stutements fin The Year Endetl 3dh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

12. Revenue From Rent of Facilities

13. Finance /l nterest lncome

I 4. Other I ncome

Residential property

Commercial property

Total Revenue llom rent of facilities

Cash investments and fixed deposits

lnterest income from short- term/ current deposits

Interest income from Treasury Bills

lnterest income from Treasury Bonds

Interest fiom outstanding debtors

Total finance income

lnsurance recoveries

lncome from sale of tender

Services concession income

Sale ofgoods (water, publications, containers etc)

Total other income
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to the Financial Statements (Continued)

aU Clinical (losts

ee ('osts

t

D lnt€ costs/ materials

|uotL ilory chcmicals and reagents 219.300

)palR iation and referrals 578,000

F ,Od urd Ration 1,006,455

L rifo m, clothing and linen 363,375

t :ess ng and Non-Pharmaceuticals 155,000

rantP Laceutical supplies -Medical Stations

F :al( r information stati onery 142,500

R )pr( ductive health materials

S .nltt ry and cleansing Materials 96,380

P trch me of Medical gases

) Ra /Radiology supplies

C lher medical related clinical costs (Medical Drugs)

rtal.I
medicaU clinical costs 2,561,0t0

6. tl

S lr* es, wages, and allowances I,688,771
(bno butions to pension schemes

[*iS :e gratuity

li :rfo mance and other bonuses
( alI ne.dical expenses and Insurance cover
( roul ) personal accident insurance and WIBA
s )c la contribution
( ther employee costs (specifo)

I mp oyee costs 1,688,771
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Kabartonjo l.evel 4 Hospilal (Baringo County Government)
Annual Repon and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

17. Board of Management Expenses

18. Depreciation And Amortization Expense

19. Repairs and Maintenance

Chainnan's Honoraria

Sitting allowance 1 il,000
Mileage

Insurance expenses

Induction and training

Travel and accommodation allowance

Airtirne allowances

Total I I1,000

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Investment property carried at cost

Total depreciation and amortization

Property- Buildings 147.150

Generator Battery 12,000

Office equipment

Fumiture and fittings

Computers and accessories ( Installation of CCTV) 357,274

Motor vehicle expenses (Refined Fuel) 290,000

Maintenance of civil works (Repair of Washing Machine) 20.000

Total repairs and maintenance 826,121
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uu R and l,-inancial Statcmentsfir The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ts And Subsidies

eral Expenses

Dte!

G

ity development and social work

u n initiatives and programs

bsidised medical camp

sg lity programs

cer screenlng

grants and subsidies(speci fo )

grants and subsidies

I dve

( ng expenses

\ astr I management expenses

secI icides and rodenticides

I udit fees

mkt charges 2,893
( onf rences and delegations

( ons rltancy fees

( ontr acted services

t ect rcrty expenses 55,000

I sur Ince

t ssei rch and development expenses
,]

ravt I and accommodation allowance 2s9.000

I tla expenses

T cer scs and pennits

our( er and postal services 9.450
I :tnt ng and stationery 48.520

i lIe :harges (lents & Chairs) r 0.000
( <illr development levies

I eleg hone and mobile phone services t 0,000

Ipp y of Firewood 53,500

ota General Expenses 594,363

Ei
E
Ei
E
Ei
E
Ei

il

I
Ill,l!tI

@
C!
-trt
lgitila-l

!
I
lslt
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Kaburtonjo l,evel 4 Hospital (Raringo County Government)
Annuol Report und f-inanciul Statements fir The l'ear Entletl 3dh June 2022

Borrowings (amortized cost) *

Finance leases (arnortized cost)

lnterest on Bank overdrafts/Guarantees

lnterest on loans from cornmercial banks
'fotal finance costs

22. F inance (losts

(Borrowing costs that relate to interest expense on acquisition of non- current assets and do not qualifo lor
Capitalisation as per IPSAS 5. on borrowing costs should be included under this note.)

23. Gain/Loss on Disposal of Non-Current Assets

21. [)nrealized Gain on F air Value lnvestments

Property, plant, and equipment

Intangible assets

Other assets not capitalised (specify)
'l-otal gain on sale of assets

lnvestments at lair value

Totrl gain

-r -,
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o I.evel 4 Hospital (Raringo County Government)
and F'in ancial Statements or The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

the Financial Statements (Continued)

Services Contracts Gains /Losses

rment Loss

2 and Cash Equivalents

u

2

2

C, ensive care contracts with NHIF

N omprehensive contracts care with NHIF
Lit Program

W and ExemptionsM

I ( in/LossI

I

y, plant, and equipment

le assets

npairment loss

( u rcnl accounts (KCB A/c 114921ss931
510,279

( )n .ca I deposits

I I xi dd )posits accounts

( al 1llt hand

( Ith :rs( peoiry)- Mobile money

I o1 rl cr tsh and cash equivalents 51o,279

-IlMil;t
I

Eatt
I.g
;EEI
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aI

t
t
I
H
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I
I
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Kabartonjo l.evel 4 Hospital (llaringo
Annual Report and Financial Stateme.

County Government)
ntsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

27 a . Detailed An sis of Cash and Cash E

28. Receivables From Exchange Transactions

uivalents

a) Ourrent account

Kenya Commercial bank A/C 1149215593 510,279

Equity Bank, etc

Sub- total

b) On - call deposits

Kenya Commercial bank

Equity Bank - etc

Su b- total

c) F'ixed deposits account

Bank Name

Su [> total

d) Others(speciS)

cash in hand

Mobile money- Mpesa, Airtel money

Su b' total

Grand total 510,279

Medical services receivables

Rent receivables

Other exchange debtors

[rss: impairment allowance

'fotal receivables
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I I lnsl ,rs from the County Government

LI disl rursed donor funds

ler lebtors (non-exchange transactions)

Li is: I npairment allowance

I'r tal

.U
'el

rdisl
plet

Int

finr ceutical supplies

inte rance supplies

dsr pplies

n 9na nd clothing supplies

I an g materials supplies

tela supplies

s: p ovision for impairment of stocks

al

E

I
E
G
E
E
E
E
u

I
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o Levcl 4 Hospital (Raringo County Government)
eport and Financial Slatementsfir The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

the Financial Statements (Continued)

eivables From Non-Exchange Transactions

ed donor funds refer to funds expected where conditions for disbursements have been met by the
as at thc reporting date)

ntories3

I
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Kahartonjo Level 4 Hospilal (Baringo County Government)
Annuul Report and Finunciul Slutements lor The Yeur Endetl 3dh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

31. Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost

At lJuly 2020

Additions

Disposals

Trans I'ers/adj u stme n t s

At 30th June 2021

At l't July 2021

Additions

Disposals

Transfer/adjustments

At 30rh June 2022

Depreciation and
impairment
At lJuly 2020

Depreciation for the year

Disposals

Impairnrent

37



Kubarktnjo l-evel I Hospital (Bar Coun
unc

At30 June 2021

At July 2021

Depreciation

Disposals

Impairment

Transfer/adjustment

At 30th June 2022

At 30th June 2021

At 30th June 2022

38
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Kabartonjo l.evel 4 Hospital (Baringo County Government)
Annual Reytn and Financial Statements for The Year Entled 3dh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

32. lntangible Assets-Software

33. lnvestmentProperty

3.t. Trade And Other Pavables

Cost

At beginning of the year

Additions

Additions-lntemal development

Disposal

At end of the year

Amortization and impairment

At beginning of the year

Amortization for the period

hnpairment loss

At end of the vear

NBV

At beginning of the year

Additions

Fair value gain

Depreciation (where investment property is at cost)

At end of the year

Trade payables

Employee dues

Third-party payments (unremifted payroll deductions)

Audit fee

Doctors'f'ee

Total trade and other payables
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rtonjo Level 4 Hqspital (Ilaringo County Government)
A nual R and Financiul Statements or The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

J

otes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Refundable Deposits from Customers/Patients

Provisions

l Finance Lease Obligation

edical fees paid in advance

t frcility deposit

ent deposits

ers (specifu)

otal deposits

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additional Provisions

hovision utilised
3hange due to discount & time value for money
Iotal provisions

lurrent kovisions
Von{urrent Provisions

Total Provisions

Kshs
lurrent lrase obligation

Long term lease obligation

Totrl
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Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospital (Baringo County Government)
Annual Report antl Financial Statements for The Year Endetl 3dh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

38. Deferred Income

38 (a) The deferred income movement is as follows:

39. Borrowings

Current Portion

Non-Current Porlion

Total

Balance bif
Additions during the year

Transfers to Capital fund
Transfers to statement of
financial performance

Other transfers (Specify)

Balance (l/F

Balance at beginning of the period

External borrowings during the year

Dornestic borrowings during the year

Repayments of extemal borrowings during the year

Repayments of domestic borrowings during the year

Balance at end of the period

4l
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ubartonjo l.evel 4 Hospital (Baringo County Government)

ual Reprtrt and F'inancial Statements for The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

39, (a) Breakdown ofLong- And Short-Term Borrowings

Current portion of borrowings are those borrowr ngs that are payable wrthin one year or the next
nancial year. Additional disclosures on terms of borrowings, nature of borrowings, security and

nterest rales should be disclosed)

{ Service Concession Arrangements

{ Cash Generated from Operations

(The total of this statement should tie to the cash flow section on net cash flows from/ used
in operations)

Current Obligation

Non-Cunent Obligation

otnl

rair value ofservice concession assets recognized under PPE

{ccumulated depreciation to dale

,let carrying amount
iervice ooncession liability at beginning of the year

iervice concession revenue recognized

rvice concession liability at end ofthe year

rd usted for:
I )epreciation
I {on-cash grants received
I nparnnent
( ral ns and losses on disposal ofassets
( lontribution to provisions
( lontribution to impairment allowance
\ i/orking Capital adjustments
I lcrease m rnventorv
I tcrease in receivables

I rcrease in deferred income
I rcrease in payables

I rcrease in payrnents received in advance

I et cash flow from o rating activities

42

F

tl

I



t
Kabartonjo l-evel 4 Hospital (llaringo County Government)
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43

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

42. Financial Risk Management

The Kabartonjo Hospital's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and

liquidity risks and effects of changes in foreign curency. The company's overall risk management

prograrnme focuses on the unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to

minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels

of risk. The company does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only

extended to customers with an established credit history.

The Kabartonjo Hospital's financial risk management objectives and pohcies are detailed below:

(i) Credit risk

The Kabartonjo Hospital has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be

unable to pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and

deposits with banks, as well as fiade and othsr receivables and available-for-sale financial

investrnents. Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its

financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal

or external assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in the

statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the

company's mana8ement based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic

environment. The carrying arnount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements

representing the Kabartonjo Hospital's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of
the value ofany collateral obtained is made up as follows:
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bartonJo Level 4 Httspital (Baringo County Government)
nual n and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

to the Financial Statements (Continued)

The totals column should tie to the individual elements of credit risk disclosed in the Kabartonjo
ospital's statement of financial position)

c slomers under the fully perfonning category are paying their debts as they continue

di g. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for

ectible amounts that the company has recognised in the financial staternents is consideredc

q e to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts

eters with in which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated

(ii) Liquidity risk management

tr e responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the hospital's board of
nt who have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the

nt of the Kabartonjo Hospital's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity

t requirements. The Kabartonjo Hospital manages liquidity risk through continuous

nl ng offorecasts and actual cash flows

ble below represents cash flows payable by the company under non-derivative financial

c d of management sets the company's credit policies and objectives and lays down

e

es by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed

lh table arc the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal

tr ng balances, as the impact ofdiscounting is not significant

\t 30 June 2021

leceivables Iiom exchange transactions

leceivables from -non-exchange transactions

|ank balances

otal

tt 30 June 2022

I ieceivables from exchange transactions

I lecaivables from -non-exchange transactions

I iank balances

1 otal

I
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Kabartonjo Level 4 Hospital (Baringo Ctrunty Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Endetl 3dh June 2022

At 30 June 2022
Trade payables

Current portion of borrowings

Provisions

Deferred income

Employee benefi t obligation

Total

At J0 June 2022

Trade payables

Current portion of borrowings

Provisions

Deferred income

Employee benefi t obligation
'l'otal

I

(iii) Market risk

The hospital has put in place an internal audit firnction to assist it in assessing the risk faced by

the Kabartonjo Hospital on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the desigr and effectiveness of its

internal accounting and operational controls. Market risk is the risk arising from changes in

market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices and foreign exchange rates which will aflect

the Kabartonjo Hospital's income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The

objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within

acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Overall responsibility for managing market

risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management Committee.
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onjo Level 4 Hospital (Baringo County Government)
uul Re. and Financial Stutements or The Year Entted 3dh June 2022

to the Financial Statements (Continued)

compatry's Finance Department is responsible for the developnrent of detailed risk

ement policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management Committee)

d for the day-today implementation of those policies. There has been no change to the

onjo Hospital's exposure to market risks or the way it manages and measures the risk

Foreign currency risk
bartonjo Hospital has transactional currency exposues. Such exposure arises through

of goods and services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. Invoices

ated in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days from the date of the invoice and

on at the time of payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate. The carrying

ofthe Kabartonjo Hospital's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and nronetary

ties at the end ofthe reporting period are as follows

onjo Hospital manages foreign exchange risk from future commercial transactions and
assets and liabilities by projecting expected sales proceeds and matching the same with

payments
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Kabartonjo l.evel 4 Hospital (Raringo County Government)
Annual Report and Financiul Statements for The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the effect on the company's statement of financial

performance on applying the sensitivity for a reasonable possible change in the exchange rate

of the three main transaction currencies, with all other variables held constant. The reverse

would also occur ifthe Kenya Shilling appreciated with all other variables held constant.

I nterest rate risk

lnterest rate risk is the risk that the Kabartonjo Hospital's linancial condition may be

adversely affected as a result of changes in interest rate levels. The company's interest rate

risk arises fiom bank deposits. This exposes the company to cash flow interest rate risk. The

interest rate risk exposure arises mainly fiom interest rate movements on the company's

deposits.

Management of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that

offer favourable interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis

The Kabartonjo Hospital analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting

a sensitivity analysis. This involves determining the impact on profit or loss of defined rate

shifts. The sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk ,rssunes that all other variables, in

particular foreign exchange rates, remain constant. The analysis has been performed on the

same basis as the prior year.

20xx
Euro l0o/o

USD l0o/o

20xx
Euro l0o/o

USD t0%
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otes to the Financial Statements (()ontinued)

v)Capital Risk Management

e objective of the Kabartonjo Hospital's capital risk management is to safeguard the

ryital's ability to continue as a going concern. The Kabartonjo Hospital capital

tructure comprises of the following funds

Relatcd Party Balances

ture of related party relationships

tities and other parties related to the Kabartonjo Hospital include those parties who have

ancial decisions. Related parties include management personnel, their associates, and

c family members

ernmertt of Kenya

e C.nvernment of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the Kabartonjo Hospital, holding 100% of
Kabartonjo Hospital's equity interest. The Govemment of Kenya has provrded full guarantees to

long-term lenders of the Kabartonjo Hospital, both domestic and extemal. Other related parties

lude:

al

i)
ii)
iii)
iv)

The National Government;
The County Govemment;
Board of Directors;
Key Management

levaluation reserve

[etained earnings

( )apital reserve
'otsl funds

'otal borrowings

t ess: cash and bank balances

I et debt/ (excess cash and cash equivalents)

( iearrng
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Kabartonjo l.evel 4 Hospital (Baringo County Government)
Annual Report and Financiul Statements for The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Oontinued)

Transactions w ith related parties

a) Services offered to related parties

Services to xxx

Sales of services to xxx
'I'otal

b) Grants from the Governme nt
Crrants from County Government

Grants from the National Government Entities

Donations in kind

Total

c) Expenses incurred on behalfofrelated party
Payments ofsalaries and wages for xxx ernployees

Payments for goods and services for xxx
'fotal

d) Key management compensation

Directors' ernolurnents

Compensation to the medical Sup

Compensation to key managerrent

Total
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Segment Information

ffiere an organisation operates rn different geographical regions or in departments, IPSAS l8
on segmental reporting requires an Kabartonjo Hospital to present segmental information of
each geographic region or departrnent to enable users understand the Kabartonjo Hospital's
performance and allocation of resources to different segments)

{ Contingent Liabilities

Cive details)

Capital Commitments

(NB: Cryital commitments are commitments to be carried out in the next financial year and are
disclosed in accordance with IPSAS 17. Capital commitments may be those that have been authorised
by the board but at the end of the year had not been contracted or those already contracted for and
ongoing)

{ Events After The Reporting Period

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

Ultimate And Holding Kabartonjo Hospital

The Kabartonjo Hospital is a State Corporation/ or a Semi- Autonomous Government

Agency under the Ministry of Health. lts ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

Court case xxx against the company

Bank guarantees in favour ofsubsidiary

Total

Kshs

Authorised For

Authorised And Contracted For

Total
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Kaharlonjo Level 4 Hospital (Baringo (bunty Government)
Annuul Report and Finuncial Stutements lbr The Year Entled 3(/' June 2022

9. Appendices
Appcndix l: Progress on Follow up of Auditor Recommendations
The following is the summary of issues raised by the external audrtor, and management comments that were provided to the auditor. We have
nominated foca.l persons to resolve the various issues as shown below with the associated time frame within which we expect the issues to be
resolved.

Guidance Notes:

(i) Use the same reference numbers as contained in the extemal audit report.

(ii) Obtain the "lssue/Observation" and "management comments", required above, from the final external audit report that is signed by
Management,

(iii) Before approving the report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Point persons within your Kabartonjo Hospital responsible
for implementation of each issue.

Indicate the status of"Re lved" or "Not Resolved" by the date of submitting this report to National Treasury

6d, L^
) C

(iv)

Accounting Officer
(ro be signed oZ,}.n?ffyUll,* officer of the Hospital;

5t
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APPENDIX II: Projects Implemented by the Ikbartonjo Hospital

rroJecnl
Projects implemented by the Hospital Funded by development partners

Status of Projects completion

(Summarise the status of project completion at the end of each quarter, i.e. total costs incune{ stage which the project is etc)

I

2

I

2

3
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APPENDf,{ III : PENDING BILLS AS AT 3OTH JUNE,2022
CODE NAME ITEI\I DESCRIPTION ACCRUED

2l l0:0: MEDSI'PT KAtsARTONJO CASUAL WAGES MARCH-JI]NE 371 .142

22t010I KI]NYA R)WER ELEC'IRICITY BILLS 196,i00 00

22t0to2 KIRANDIC}{ WATER CO,LID WATFR BILI,S ?7_000.00

22t0203 POSTAI- CORI'oRA TIoN IOSIAL RENEWAL

TOBIL FILLING STATION RFFINIiD FI I]TI, DIF]SFI, 70.000 00

221l0l5 RAGONY INITSTMHNTS PERISThBI.E FOODS . MILK 20.800 00

221l0l5 JULIAS GR(X]ERY FRESIi FOODS . VEGEIABLES 9 t00 00

221 l0l5 PAMo.IA L-NIERPRI SES BRLAI) 14.780

221 l0l5 SIMOT POSHOMII,I, GRINDING SI]RVICES 5_955 00

22lLOt5 I,D11O BUTC}IERY RED M}iAT 2l.1tvJ

2211008 SAMADAC I)IAGNOSTIC L.A B RI-.{GINTS 211.400.(n

221 I r)01 MERIC PRINIERS MEDICAI S IATIONARY 103.600.00

2: l l00l X-EIBoNEI BOOKSTORITS oFFICE STAIIONARY 41.550.00

l: I l0(, I JETSAN ENlEzu'RISES CLEANING MA-TERIALS 28-000 00

2llll03 KI'ZIM AGI]NCII]S 63550

2220205 rOIMF]T HARI)WARI.: MOTOR VEHICLFI RLPAIRS 9100

22t t204 KIPTABUT SAWMILL FIRIWOOD 10.000.00

22t 1204 AFRICOM IiNII.:RPRIStsS IT EQ1IIPMIINTS REPAIRS . CCTV 6.-150 00

3l I 1002 ONSET TECHNOLOGIES PHOTOCOPIFR RI]PAIR 5?050

3tI1002 MERC Y UMTORMS STAFT LNIFORMS 20_000 00

2211015 CERFALS MILLET MAIZE BI]ANS 10.100.00

2110202 NSSF.CASUAI-S 201,1- 15 REMIITANCE 35-000.00

TOT-{LS 1,391,02i

53
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BARINGO COUNTY GOVERNMENT

lIAlAIrOnro Llrrtl I HotDtIAl
APPENDIX IV: Intcr-Kabartonjo Hospital Confirmafion Letter

The Baringo County Govemment Treasury to confirm the amounts disbursed to you as at 30rh June 2022 as indicated in the table below. Please
compare the amounts disbursed to you with the amounts you received and populate the column E in the table below Please sign and stamp this
request in the space provided and return it to us.

Amounts Disbursed by [Baringo County Treasury] (KShs) as at 30th
Jtne2O22

Reference
Number
A/C NO.
1149215s93

Date
Disbursed

Recurrent (A) Development (B) Inter-
Ministerial

(c)

Total
(D)=(A+B+C)

Amount Received
by IBaringo
Kabartonjo

Hospitall
lKShs) as at 30th

June 2021
(E)

Differences
(KShs)

(F):(D-E)

Transfer from
Baringo
Treasury

t6t9t202l 487.5 30 487.530 487,530

Transfer from
Baringo
Treasury

2.688.672 2,688.672 2,688.672

5.1

Kubartonjo (Ilurins0

l.rtrdh
nredluphobqrtonb@gnril.com
When replying phore quote
l.t IlrClH

15t10t2021
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Transfer from
Baringo
Treasury

30t11t2021 426.280 426,280 426,280

Transfer from
Baringo
Treasury

14t1t2022 250.000 250,000 250.000

Transfer from
Baringo
Treasury

2t3t2022 776,960 776,960 776.960

Transfer from
Baringo
Treasury

11t5t2022 250.000

Transfer from
Baringo
Treasury

11t5t2022 63 8,390 63 8,390 63 8,390

Transfer from
Baringo
Treasury

29t6t2022 722.865 722.86s 722,865

Total 6.2{0.697 6.2tO-697 6-240-697

In confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as ofthe date indicated

hn/ ,f)ate ?KM::fiij:I:-:: Sign

Head of cc<luntants de

J.!.t.{.'..Name..

ry Kabartonjo Hospital:

l( ERINTENDENT
SUB.COUNTY

z , HAY 202rr

REFERRAL HOS
P.O. BoX 120.30401. K,
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APPENDIX V Reporting of Climate Relcvant Expenditures

Name of the Organization: Ikbartonjo trvel 4 Hospital

Telephone Number: 07 22449'7 99

Email Address :medsupkabartonjo@g;mail. com

Name of Medical Supp: Anderson Chelugo

Name and contact details ofcontact person (in case ofany clarifications) Janet Kabutie, lVtatron Incharge Celt Phone: 0724851435

Qr Q2 Q3
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APPENDIX Vl Disaster Expenditure Reporting Template

Period to
which this
report refers
(FY)

Year Quarte r

Name of
Reporting
Offrcer

Email Telephone

Colurnn I Column II Column III Column IV Column V Column VI Column VII
Progranune Sub-

progr:unme
Disaster
Type

Category ofdisaster related Activity that
require expenditure repofting
(response/recovery/mitigation/preparedness)

Anrount
(Kshs.)

Comments

57

Contact
details ofthe
reporting
oflicer:

Expenditure
item



Kuhu o ul urtn

PE lr x I tl I'emplate as at30'" .lune 2022

coD t) NAluf ITE]\T DESCRIPTION ACCRUf I)

2110202 MEDSTIPI' KABARTON.IO CASUAI- WAGF]S MARCII-JI INF] 377 .7 12

22t0l0t KINYA POUER IJI-IiC TRICII'Y I]ILI-S t 96.500.00

z?to to2 KIRAM)ICLI WATER CO,LTD WAI'ER BII,LS 71 .UJO OO

l: t0203 POSTAI- CORPORA'UON POSTAL RIiNEWAI 650.00

2: I l2r) I TOBIL }'II,ING SI'ATION REFINED FUEL DIESEL 70.000.00

2lll0l5 RA(iONY INVESTMEN'TS PERISHABLE FOODS - MII-K 20.800 00

2l I l0l5 TUIMARC T:NIERPRISES DRY FOOD

lll l0l5 ruI-IAS GROCERY T-RESH I.-OODS - I'[GETABI,L:S 9 t00 00

PAMOJA ENTI'RPRISES uRltAI) 14.780

SIN'lOT POSI]OMILI GRINDING SERVICES 5.955 00

221t0ti I,E1'IO BUTCHI]RY RED NIEAT

22 U008 I-AB REAGENTS 2 12..{00 00

221l00l MEDICAL STATIONARY 103.600.00

221 l00l KE TI]()NET BOOKSTORF]S OIFICE STATIONARY I I 550 ()(.)

:l I l(lo I JEI'SAN ENTER}RISES CLI]ANING MATERIALS 28.000 00

221I103 KEZ-F,N{ AGI]NCIES HARDWARE MATERTAI-S 63550

2220205 KOTMET }IARI)WARE MOTOR VEIIICLE REPAIRS 92(Xl

22 201 KIPTABUT SA\IMII-L FIRI.]WOoI) t0.u|0.00

22t 1204 ATRICOM ENTERPRISES IT EQUIPMENTS REPAIRS .CCTV 6.35{) 00

3|Il0n2 ONSI]]' TECt{NOLOGIES 57050

3II1002 MERCY I.INIT ORMS STAFF INI!ORNlS 20.000 0o

2ll l0l5 CEREAI,S MIl-LTJI'A4AIZE/BEANS 10.100 00

2l 10202 NSSF-CASTIALS 20 I4-I5 REMIII'ANC E

2: I I (l() I RIWO CHEMIST NON PTIARMACELITICAL STIPPI-IES

TOTALS I J91,027
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MI'RIC PRINIERS

PHOTOCOPIER REPAIR
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APPENDIx vIlI Disaster Expenditure Reporting Template

REVENU E COLLECTION FROM 2019/2020-2021 12022

PERIOD Qr Q2 Q3 Q4 TOTAL

2019-20 1231775 1390760 2047010 1315390 5,984,935

2020-21 713700 650750 288405 63 5505 2,288,360

2021-22 487530 3114952 1026960 t6lt255 6,240,697
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.{r r LI\L' t,\ ,a sse Kepo ng lem atertr

KABARTONJO HOSPITAL ASSET REGISTER AS AT 3OIH JUNE 2022

category Dept Acquired Date Cost

KBO THEATRE BLOCK BUILDINGS HEALTH O KWEI 28-Dec-14 t8,473,A?'2

KBO HOSP INCINERATOR CIVIL WORKS HEALTH KOSKI 07Jul-15 320,t92

KBO HOSP OP THEATRE BUILDINGS HEALTH OKWEI 17-Sep-15 994,Ot7

KBO HOSP INCINERATOR CIVIL WORKS KOSKI 04-Mar-16 262,t69

KBO HOSP SEPTIC TANK CIVIT WORKS HEALTH KIPLAN 07-Dec-18 t,t49,270
KBO HOSP THEATRE ELECTRICAI

WORKS
CIVIL WORKS HEALTH BEL 07-Dec-18 1,254,8(x)

CIVIL WORKS HEALTH KIPLAN 15Jan- 19 ?12,324

KBO HOSP WALKWAY KIPLAN 04-Dec-19 1,487,QO

KBO HOSP EQUIPMENT OTHER EQUIPMENTS PENTA 24-Apr-20 8,301,7s0

KBO HOSP EQUIPMENT OTHER EQUIPMENTS H EALTH ASTONIAN 04-Jun-20 6,442,760

KBO HOSP MAT BLOCK BUILDINGS KAIBOS 19-Feb-21 1,968,977

KBO HOSP MAT BLOCK BUILDINGS HEALTH KOIBOS 19-Feb-21 2,O29,874

KBO HOSP ADMIN BLOCK BUILDINGS HEALTH JUNIORMAX 74-Jun-21 7,L8{J,254

KBO HOSP MAT BLOCK BUILDINGS HEALTH KOTBOS 74-)ua-21 7,527,76

KBO HOSP MAT BLOCK BUItDINGS HEALTH KOIBOS 30-Jun-21 2,7fi,461

KBO HOSP RENOVATION CIVIL WORKS

KABARTONJO

HOSPITAI
ASSETS

FASLIM '1,7-MaV-23

KBO HOSP THEATRE ELOCK BUILDINGS Type KEFDAH 77-May-23 1,450,oL7

GRANT TOTAI. 5L,O74,709
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T

Contractor/Suppller

HEALTH

K80 HOSP SEPTIC TANK

CIVIL WORKS HEALTH

HEATTH

HEALTH

999,896
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Disclosure:

l. The Revenue collections in question is the amount received from patients and the same is banked in the County Revenue Fund Account which
is controlled by the County Treasury through the National Treasury. The hospital receives its expenditure (Authority to incur expenditure) from
the total amount collected during the period under review and it is being requisitioned in quarterly basis, The Board of management is required
to have a sitting and come up with a budget based on the revenue amount received per quarter. Appendix VIII

2. The pending bills amounting to Kshs. 1,391,.027 in Appendix lX was as a result the hospital receiving less allocation as compared to the
expendinre incurred prompting the hospital management to pay part payment to suppliers resulting to the figure in question.

3. The Assets Register in Appendix VII amounting to Kshs 5L,O74,7O9 is being maintained by Baringo County Treasury but not the Hospital.
The arnount in question is recorded in historical cost and the assets are recognised when paid but not when in process. The County has no
depreciation of assets policy as it was the mandate of National Treasury to come up with one which has not been done to date.
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